
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

September 12, 2017 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Sep 12 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sept 12 
immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 12 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
Sep 19 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 26 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
Sep 26 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
Oct 10 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, Daly Elementary, 1735 Strong Avenue 

Oct 10 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, Daly Elementary, 1735 Strong Avenue 
 

******************* 
A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 

 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 
 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

D. MINUTES  -   August 22, 2017 – Public Work Session 
August 22, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

E. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 
 

 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 

appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

 1028 Hearing – 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project 
 

 Resolution of Board of School Trustees regarding Execution of the 

Amendment to Lease – The Business Office recommends Board adoption of 
a resolution to enter into lease agreement. 
 

 Resolution for Additional Appropriation – The Business Office recommends 

Board adoption of an additional appropriation for proposed improvements 
to the Elkhart Community Schools Food Commissary. 
 

 Resolution for Additional Appropriation – The Business office recommends 
Board adoption of an additional appropriation for proposed improvements to 
the Educational Services Center. 
 

 Textbook Rental Fees – The Business Office recommends Board approval of 
revisions to textbook rental fees for the 2017-2018 school year. 



BOARD AGENDA September 12, 2017 
 
 

2 
   

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

F. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 Board Policy 3210CS – The administration presents proposed revisions to 
Board Policy 3210CS – Staff Ethics, as initially presented at the Board’s 

August 22nd regular meeting. 
 

 Board Policy 3220.01 – The administration presents proposed new Board 
Policy 3220.01 - Teacher Appreciation Grants, as initially presented at the 

Board’s August 22nd regular meeting. 
 

 Board Policy 5111 – The administration presents proposed revisions to 

Board Policy 5111 - Determination of Legal Settlement, as initially 
presented at the Board’s August 22nd regular meeting. 
 

G. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Board Policy 3121ACS – The administration presents proposed revisions to 
Board Policy 3121ACS - Personal Background Checks and Mandatory 
Reporting of Convictions and Arrests, for initial consideration. 
 

 Agreement Between Elkhart Community Schools and ETHOS, Inc. 
 

 ISTEP Report 
 

 Monthly Literacy and Career and College Readiness Reports 
 

 Administrative Conflict of Interest – Elkhart Community School’s 
administrator discloses a potential conflict of interest statement. 
 

 Grants – The administration seeks Board approval for the submission of 
grants as recommended by the administration. 
 

 Overnight Trip Requests - The administration seeks Board approval of 

overnight trip requests. 
 

H. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended 
by the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 
 

I. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 
 

 From Board 
 

J. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

August 22, 2017 
 

Beardsley Elementary School, 1027 McPherson Street, Elkhart – 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Glenn L. Duncan 
 Douglas K. Weaver Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Dawn McGrath 
 Tony Gianesi Kevin Scott 
 Rob Haworth Doug Thorne 
 Maggie Lozano Cheryl Waggoner 
  Bob Woods 

   
 

Roll Call 

The Board heard presentations from Jeff Hadden, President of LHD Benefit 
Advisors on the initial review of the Activate Health Clinic, a review of insurance 
claims, and information regarding the current Request for Proposal (RFP) sent to 
insurance providers.  The Board also heard Dawn McGrath, Deputy 
Superintendent, provide an overview of a Professional Learning Community 
(PLC) and heard Kevin Scott, Chief Financial Officer, present a preview of the 
general fund budget.   
 
The Board also discussed agenda items for the regular Board meeting. 
 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:55 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 
August 22, 2017 

 
Beardsley Elementary School, 1027 McPherson Street, Elkhart – at 7:00 

p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Glenn L. Duncan 

 Douglas K. Weaver Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 

   
 

Roll Call 

President Susan Daiber called the regular meeting of the Board of School 

Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

Call to 

Order 

Board member Jeri Stahr recited the Elkhart Promise. The Elkhart 

Promise 
 

Mrs. Daiber discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 

 

 

Jeff Komins, energy education specialist/elementary activities, reported 
on the building audit performed on Tuesday, August 22nd at Beardsley 

Elementary School at 4:45 a.m.  Mr. Komins reported 74% of the areas 
were in compliance and received “Thanks for Saving Energy” stickers.  
Beardsley continues to do an excellent job with their shut downs and 

even considering the ongoing construction in their building, show a cost 
avoidance of $15,362 through June.  The district’s cost avoidance was the 
best it has ever been for the month of June. 

 

Building Energy 
Report 

Val Priller, Beardsley principal, introduced her staff.  Mrs. Priller 
presented slides reflecting NWEA average growth in math and reading, 

contributed the significant growth to the positive school culture 
consisting of safety for all, involvement with school and community, a 
profound emphasis on growth, and strong relationships and 

partnerships.  Mrs. Priller presented high growth certificates to nine 
students in reading and five in math.  Certificates were also presented to 
the robotics team and ‘battle of the books’ readers.  Some of the next 

steps for Beardsley include: continue growing opportunities for students; 
developing new and strengthening existing community partners; and 
focus on students and community. 

 

Building Report 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
August 8, 2017 – Public Work Session 

August 8, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
August 15, 2017 – Public Work Session 
 

Approval of 
Minutes 



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$2,680,721.59 as shown on the August 22, 2017, claims listing.  

(Codified File 1718-18) 
 

Payment of 
Claims  

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 

donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS):  $600.00 to 
Central High School’s (CHS) boys’ soccer team from Mr. and Mrs. Ronald 
Perry; and 85 backpacks filled with school supplies to Memorial High 

School (MHS) from the Indiana Toll Road’s staff’s Back 2 School Bash, 
for distribution to students. 
 

Gift Acceptance 

The Board received a financial report for the period January 1 – July 31, 
2017, and found it to be in order. 
 

Financial 
Report 

Kevin Scott, chief financial officer, reported the following fund loan was 
made on July 31, 2017: $627,000 from Debt Service Fund to 
Retirement/ Severance Bond Fund. 

 

Fund Loans 

Kevin Scott provided the current insurance report including medical plan 
experience costs compared year-to-date. 

 

Insurance 
Report 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 

in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1718-19) 

 

Fundraiser 

Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions of Board 
Policy 8405 - Environmental Health and Safety Issues - Indoor Air 

Quality, Animals in the Classroom, and Idling Vehicles on School 
Property, as initially presented at the Board’s August 8th regular 
meeting. 

 

Board Policy 
8405 

 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Board Policy 3210 – 
Staff Ethics, for initial consideration.  Doug Thorne, district counsel/chief 

of staff, stated the revision eliminates the reference to an administrative 
regulation no longer used. 
 

Board Policy 
3210 

The Board was presented proposed new Board Policy 3220.01 - Teacher 
Appreciation Grants, for initial consideration.  Mr. Thorne stated the 
proposed new policy is for determining the distribution of teacher 

appreciation grants.  Board members discussed the incentives and the 
current labor market and shortage of teachers throughout Indiana. 
 

Board Policy 
3220.01 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Board Policy 5111 - 
Determination of Legal Settlement, for initial consideration.  Mr. Thorne 
stated the change allows for children of full-time staff living outside of 

Indiana to attend Elkhart Community Schools without tuition fees. 
 

Board Policy 
5111 



3 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the submission of a Good 
Neighbor grant to the Community Foundation of Elkhart County from 

Adult Education for $9,990.00. (Codified File 1718-20) 
 

Grant Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 

accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the August 22, 2017 listings. (Codified File 1718-21) 

Conference 

Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 

recommendations of the administration: 
 

Personnel 

Report 

Employment of the following twenty (20) certified staff members 

for the 2017-2018 school year:   
Brittany Atz Isaac - grade 5 at Daly 
Mary Brown - special education at Riverview/Bristol 

Mique Buck - grade 6 Feeser 
Alexandria Cupery - grade 5 at Beardsley 
Corrine Dail - grade 4 at Roosevelt 

Sean Diller - orchestra at North Side 
Ashley Elzey - grade 3 at Riverview 
Jamie Engen - grade 3 at Hawthorne 

Melissa Horvath - math at Central 
Katie Keyser - grade 6 at Daly 
Wendy Kovach - media at Pierre Moran 

Anne Ledebur - grade 1 at Beardsley 
Heather Misiano - language arts at Elkhart Academy 

Carmen Ritchie - music at Monger 
Erin Roe - psychologist at TBD 
Nanci Tarantino - elementary at Elkhart Academy 

Sara Trovatore - grade 4 (temp) at Roosevelt 
Cynthia Troxell - grade 4 at Beardsley 
Joshua Yoder - math at West Side 

Mariann Zmudzinski - grade 5 at Daly 
 

Certified 

Employment 

Retirement of certified staff member Randall Metcalfe, math at West 

Side, with 38 years of service. 
 

Certified 

Retirement 
 

Resignation of the following sixteen (16) certified staff members 

effective on dates indicated: 
Jennifer Aires - math at Central, 5/26/17 
Ami Balding - intervention at Woodland, 6/30/17 

Eric Berger - art at Daly, 8/11/17 
Aliya Caldwell - grade 2 at Feeser, 6/30/17 
Rebecca Crocker - assistant principal at Pinewood, 8/10/17 

Kara Draeger-Thomas - language arts at Central, 6/30/17 
Mary Gensel - media at Pierre Moran, 7/28/17 
Christie Heerschop - assistant principal at Osolo, 8/9/17 

Elizabeth Miller - media at Roosevelt, 8/16/17 
Natalie Murphey - behavior support at Cleveland, 6/30/17 
Hannah Rohrer - grade 1 at Daly, 5/26/17 

Certified 

Resignation 
 



4 
 

Cynthia A Smith - grade 4 at Feeser, 6/30/17 
Jason Stone - grade 4 at Roosevelt,5/26/17 

Alexa Waggoner - grade 3 PEP at Bristol, 5/26/17 
Lisa Ward - psychologist at Memorial, 8/11/17 
Ryan Wixon - physical education at Memorial, 5/26/17 

 
Health leave for certified staff member Rose Griffy, grade 2 at 
Roosevelt, beginning 8/15/17 and ending 2/9/18. 
 

Health Leave 
 

Cancel maternity leave for certified staff member Randi Weidman, 
special education at Woodland. 

Maternity 

Leave 
 

Regular employment for classified employee, Carol Lowe, route 

coordinator at Transportation, who successfully completed her 
probationary period on 8/14/17. 
 

Classified 

Employment 
 

Resignation of the following seventeen (17) classified employees 
effective on dates indicated:  

Mariana Aguilar - food service at Pierre Moran, 8/7/17 
Dreama Coleman - paraprofessional at Roosevelt, 8/14/17 
Loretta Coulahan - paraprofessional at Osolo, 8/8/17 

Veronica Davis - food service at Commissary, 8/11/17 
Michelle Genslinger - bus driver at Transportation, 6/1/17 
Teila Hazwood - paraprofessional at Cleveland, 8/15/17 

Krystal Hoop - secretary at Elkhart Academy, 8/29/17 
Tiffani Imes - food service at Beck, 8/16/17 
Mack Jenkins - food service driver at Commissary, 8/16/17 

Julie Kroehler - food service at Central, 8/16/17 
Casey Lott - paraprofessional at Beck, 8/17/17 
Kayla Magyar - bus driver at Transportation, 8/11/17 

Wyatt Ritchie - paraprofessional at EACC, 9/1/17 
Karen Russell - food service at Cleveland, 8/11/17 
Leanna Turco - bus driver at Transportation, 8/4/17 

Susan Williams - paraprofessional at Bristol, 8/7/17 
Dawn Yoder - food service at West Side, 8/14/17 

 

Classified 
Resignations 

 

Board member Carolyn Morris commented on the recent Kick-off Classic 
2017 held at Island Park and thanked Elkhart Education Foundation for 

coordinating the event. 
 

From the Board 
 

Board member, Doug Weaver thanked the Boys and Girls Club and DJ 

Construction for the work being done at Beardsley.  Mr. Weaver also 
commented on the recent honors to Phyllis Tubbs and Tom Kurth held in 
the new gymnasium and their combined impact on Elkhart athletes. 

 

From the Board 

  



5 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:55 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Rodney J. Dale, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 

 
  _____________________  ______________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

Signatures 

 







ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

********************* 
J.C. RICE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES CENTER 

2720 CALIFORNIA ROAD· ELKHART. IN 46514 

PHONE: 574-262-5500 

To: BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

FROM: ROB HAWORTH 

DATE: AUGUST 31,2017 

SUBJECT: GIFT ACCEPTANCE 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept a 
$100.45 donation from Merle and Sue Yoder 53044 Glenmore St. Elkhart, In 
46514 to go towards students negative account balances at Cleveland 
Elementary School. 



ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

********************* 
J.C. RICE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES CENTER 

2720 CALIFORNIA ROAD· ELKHART. IN 46514 
PHONE: 574262-5500 

To: BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

FROM: ROB HAWORTH 

DATE: AUGUST 31,2017 

SUBJECT: GIFT ACCEPTANCE 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept a 
$180.00 donation from an Anonymous Donor to go towards students 
account balances at Mary Daly Elementary School. The Donor remembers 
having a negative account as a student and wanted to help others in the 
same situation. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
DATE:  August 30, 2017 
 
TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 
  Board of School Trustees 
 
FROM: Gary Gardner, Principal of Osolo Elementary School 
 
RE:  Donation Approval 
 
 
A donation of $500.00 was made to support our Title I Meeting and Annual Back to 
School Picnic to be held on September 7 ,2017.  We anticipate over 600 people 
spending the evening on our playground learning about Title I, enjoying hot dogs and 
chips, jumping in inflatables, and playing on the playground.  The donation was used to 
support the cost of the event. 
 
I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and 
that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 
 
 Frank and Tonja Lucchese 
 22095 Sunset Lane 
 Elkhart, IN 46516 
 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  August 31, 2017 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

We are in receipt of an extracurricular donation in the amount of $500.00 for the Memorial High 

School volleyball program.  This donation will go towards team posters, senior banners, team 

bonding activities for all three teams as well as other miscellaneous costs associated with this 

program. 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

Jonathan and Mollie Krider 

311 River Pointe Drive 

Elkhart, IN 46514 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  8/28/17 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 
  Board of School Trustees 

FROM:  Barbara Cripe, Principal of Riverview School 

RE:  Donation Approval 

ADEC has given a generous donation of $100 to Riverview’s Music Program.  Mrs. Sagarsee, 

Riverview’s music teacher will use this donation to purchase equipment or instruments for 

students’ use. 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 ADEC, Inc. 
 P.O. Box 398 
 Bristol, IN 46507-0398 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  8/28/2017 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 
  Board of School Trustees 

FROM:  Barbara Cripe, Principal of Riverview School 

RE:  Donation Approval 

Through their work with Trinity United Methodist Church-Small Groups, Dr. David and Mrs. Lori 
Fairchild are providing Riverview teachers with a generous donation.  Twenty-three teachers 
will be receiving a $50 Walmart gift card to purchase needed items for their classrooms.  This 
amounts to a $1,150.00 donation to Riverview from the Fairchilds. 
 
I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 Dr. David and Mrs. Lori Fairchild 
 2509 E. Jackson Blvd. 
 Elkhart, IN  46516 
 
 

 

 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE

between

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL BUILDING CORPORATION,
Lessor

and

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS,
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA,

Lessee

Dated as of September 12, 2017

Cross Reference: This instrument supplements and amends the Lease, dated as of August 26,
2014, recorded in the office of the recorder of Elkhart County, Indiana, on December 30, 2014,
as Document No. 2014-25435.



FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE is entered into as of this 12th day of September,
2017 (the “First Amendment”), between ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL BUILDING
CORPORATION, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Indiana, as
lessor (the “Lessor”), and ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY,
INDIANA, a school corporation existing under the laws of the State of Indiana, as lessee (the
“Lessee”).

1. The Lessor and the Lessee entered into a Lease, dated as of August 26, 2014 (the
“Original Lease”), as amended by an Addendum to Lease, dated as of December 1, 2014 (the
“First Addendum to Lease”), and as further amended by a Second Addendum to Lease, dated as
of December 1, 2014 (the “Second Addendum to Lease”) (the Original Lease, as amended by the
First Addendum to Lease and the Second Addendum to Lease, the “Lease”).

2. The Lessor and the Lessee wish to further amend the Lease by modifying the term
of the Lease and increasing the rent payable under the Lease to provide the Lessor with the
ability to issue additional first mortgage bonds (the “2017 First Mortgage Bonds”) for the
purpose of financing all or any portion of (a) reimbursements to the Lessee for the costs of
improvements to the Premises (as defined in the Lease) previously incurred by the Lessee
following the date the Premises were acquired by the Lessor, which the Lessee will then use to
pay for the renovation, remodeling, expansion and equipment upgrade of the existing Elkhart
Community Schools Food Commissary, other miscellaneous facility and/or equipping projects at
facilities operated by the Lessee, and any projects related to any of such facility improvement,
renovation and equipping projects, and (b) the costs incurred in connection with the issuance of
the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds, including, but not limited to, all or a portion of the interest on
2017 First Mortgage Bonds as determined by the Lessor and the Lessee (collectively, the “2017
Food Commissary Renovation Project”).

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the covenants and agreements
hereinafter contained, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the Lessor and the Lessee agree as follows:

PART I

RENTAL PAYMENTS

Section 2 of the Original Lease, as previously supplemented and amended, is hereby
further amended by adding at the end thereof the following paragraphs:

“(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Lessee agrees to pay additional rental for the
Premises in an annual amount not to exceed Two Million Thirty-Two Thousand Dollars
($2,032,000.00).  Such additional rental shall be paid in semi-annual installments on June 30 and
December 31 of each year commencing no earlier than June 30 in the year immediately
following the year in which the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds are issued and ending no later than
the year which is two (2) years thereafter.  All rentals payable under the terms of this Lease shall



2

be paid by the Lessee to Trustee.  All payments so made by the Lessee shall be considered as
payments to the Lessor of the rentals payable hereunder.”

“(d) After the sale of the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds, the annual rental shall be
reduced to an amount sufficient to pay principal and interest due on all Bonds in each twelve
(12) month period commencing on June 30 of each year, together with incidental costs in each
year in an amount to be determined at the time the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds are sold for the
purpose of paying annual trustee fees and related costs, payable in semi-annual installments.  In
addition, each such reduced semi-annual installment shall be based on the value of the Premises,
together with the Improvements located on the real estate which is then subject to this Lease
together with that portion of the constructed, renovated or remodeled Improvements as they
currently exist and which are complete and ready for use and occupancy by the Lessee at the
time such semi-annual installment is made.  Such amount shall be endorsed on this Lease at the
end hereof in the form of Exhibit A attached to the First Amendment and made a part hereof by
the parties as soon as the same can be done after the sale of the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds, and
such endorsement shall be recorded as an addendum to this Lease.”

PART II

TERM

Notwithstanding anything in the Lease to the contrary, the term of the Lease with respect
to the additional rental set forth in Part I of this First Amendment shall end in the year which is
two years after the date of the issuance of the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds, or such earlier date as
set forth in an addendum to this First Amendment executed by the Lessor and Lessee at the
issuance of the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds by the Lessor in connection with the 2017 Food
Commissary Renovation Project.

PART III

REAFFIRMATION OF LEASE

Except as otherwise provided herein, all terms, conditions and provisions of the Lease, as
previously supplemented and amended, are hereby ratified and affirmed.



3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Lessor and Lessee have executed this First Amendment to
Lease as of the date and year first above written.

LESSEE

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS,
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA

By:
Susan C. Daiber, President of the Board of
School Trustees

ATTEST:

Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary of the Board of
School Trustees

LESSOR

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL
BUILDING CORPORATION

By:
William G. Cork, President

ATTEST:

Dr. John Hutchings, Secretary



4

STATE OF INDIANA )
) SS:

COUNTY OF _________ )

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, this _____
day of ________________, 2017, personally appeared William G. Cork and Dr. John Hutchings,
personally known to me to be President and Secretary, respectively, of the Elkhart Community
School Building Corporation and acknowledged the execution of this First Amendment to Lease
for and on behalf of said Corporation.

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal.

(Written Signature)

(Printed Signature)
Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

My County of Residence:



5

STATE OF INDIANA )
) SS:

COUNTY OF ____________ )

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, this
______ day of __________, 2017, personally appeared Susan C. Daiber and Douglas K. Weaver,
personally known to me to be President and Secretary, respectively, of the Board of School
Trustees of the Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, and acknowledged the
execution of this First Amendment to Lease for and on behalf of said School District.

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal.

(Written Signature)

(Printed Signature)
Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

My County of Residence:

This instrument prepared by Jeffery J. Qualkinbush, Esquire, Barnes & Thornburg LLP,
11 South Meridian, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204.



A-1

EXHIBIT A
TO FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE BETWEEN

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL BUILDING CORPORATION, LESSOR,
AND ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA, LESSEE



A-2

ADDENDUM TO FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL BUILDING CORPORATION, LESSOR,

AND ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA, LESSEE

THIS ADDENDUM TO FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE (this “Addendum”), entered
into as of this day of ____________, 20__, by and between the ELKHART COMMUNITY
SCHOOL BUILDING CORPORATION, an Indiana nonprofit corporation (the “Lessor”), and
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, Indiana, a public school
corporation existing under by the laws of the State of Indiana (the “Lessee”);

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Lessor entered into a lease with the Lessee dated as of August 26, 2014, as
previously amended (the “Original Lease”); and

WHEREAS, the Lessor entered into a First Amendment to Lease with the Lessee, dated as
of September 12, 2017 (the “First Amendment”); and

WHEREAS, it is provided in the First Amendment that there shall be endorsed thereon the
adjusted rental following the issuance of the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds (as defined therein).

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED, CERTIFIED AND STIPULATED by
the undersigned that the adjusted rental is set forth on Appendix I attached hereto.



A-3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Addendum to First
Amendment to Lease to be executed for and on their behalf as of the day and year first above
written.

LESSEE

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS,
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA

By:
Susan C. Daiber, President of the Board of
School Trustees

ATTEST:

Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary of the Board of
School Trustees

LESSOR

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL
BUILDING CORPORATION

By:
William G. Cork, President

ATTEST:

Dr. John Hutchings, Secretary



A-4

STATE OF INDIANA )
) SS:

COUNTY OF ___________ )

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, this _____
day of ________________, 2017, personally appeared Susan C. Daiber and Douglas K. Weaver,
personally known to me to be President and Secretary, respectively, of the Board of School
Trustees of the Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, and acknowledged the
execution of the foregoing Addendum to First Amendment to Lease for and on behalf of said
School District.

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal.

(Written Signature)

(Printed Signature)
Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

My County of Residence:



A-5

STATE OF INDIANA )
) SS:

COUNTY OF ____________ )

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, this
______ day of __________, 2017, personally appeared William G. Cork and Dr. John
Hutchings, personally known to me to be President and Secretary, respectively, of Elkhart
Community School Building Corporation and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing
Addendum to First Amendment to Lease for and on behalf of said Corporation.

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal.

(Written Signature)

(Printed Signature)
Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

My County of Residence:

This instrument prepared by Jeffery J. Qualkinbush, Esquire, Barnes & Thornburg LLP,
11 South Meridian, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204.



A-6

Appendix I to Addendum to First Amendment to Lease

Rental Schedule

The Rental Schedule for the 2017 First Mortgage Bonds is set forth
on the immediately following page.

DMS JJQ 10542736v3



APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES
OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA

WHEREAS, the Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana (the “School
Corporation”), exists and operates under the provisions of Indiana Code 20-26, as amended from
time to time (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the School Corporation, as lessee, previously entered into a Lease, dated
August 26, 2014, as modified and amended (the “Lease”), with the Elkhart Community School
Building Corporation (the “Building Corporation”), as lessor, in order to procure funds to
finance certain renovations and alterations to certain of the school facilities operated by the
School Corporation (the “Premises”); and

WHEREAS, the School Corporation and Building Corporation have determined to enter
into a first amendment to the Lease (the “First Amendment”) in order to provide funds to the
Building Corporation to pay the School Corporation for reimbursement for improvements to the
Premises (as defined in the Lease) paid by the School Corporation since the Premises have been
owned by the Building Corporation, which proceeds the School Corporation will use to pay for
the costs of the renovation, remodeling, expansion and equipment upgrade of the existing Elkhart
Community Schools Food Commissary, other miscellaneous facility and/or equipping projects at
facilities operated by the School Corporation and any projects related to any of such facility
improvement, renovation and equipping projects, all to be used in connection with the operation
of the School Corporation (collectively, the “2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Building Corporation anticipates issuing one or more series of first
mortgage bonds secured by the payments under the First Amendment (the “Bonds”), the
proceeds of which will be used to pay the School Corporation for the reimbursement for
improvements to the Premises paid by the School Corporation since the Premises have been
owned by the Building Corporation, and in turn used by the School Corporation to pay for all of
the costs of the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project and any other expenses incidental
thereto, including the costs of issuing the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the costs of the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project include, without
limitation, all expenses necessarily incurred in connection with the proceedings, together with a
sum sufficient to pay the costs of supervision and inspection during the period of the 2017 Food
Commissary Renovation Project, all expenses of every kind actually incurred by the Building
Corporation or the School Corporation preliminary to acquisition of certain property by the
Building Corporation and the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project, such as costs of
necessary records, engineering expenses, publication of notices, salaries and other expenses and
the costs of land, rights-of-way and other property to be acquired for the 2017 Food Commissary
Renovation Project; and

WHEREAS, the Board has found that there are not sufficient funds available or provided
for in the existing budget and tax levy which may be applied to the costs of the portion of the
2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project and heretofore authorized the Building Corporation
to issue its Bonds in one or more series; and



2

WHEREAS, all or a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds in an amount currently
estimated not to exceed $2,000,000 will be paid to the School Corporation by the Building
Corporation as the price for the reimbursement for improvements to the Premises paid by the
School Corporation since the Premises have been owned by the Building Corporation; and

WHEREAS, notice of a hearing on said appropriation has been duly given by publication
as required by law, and the hearing on said appropriation has been held, at which all taxpayers
had an opportunity to appear and express their views as to such appropriation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES
OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA, AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. There is hereby appropriated a sum not to exceed Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000) out of the proceeds of the Bonds received by the School Corporation from the
Building Corporation in connection with the reimbursement for improvements to the Premises
paid by the School Corporation since the Premises have been owned by the Building
Corporation, together with all investment earnings thereon, for the use by the School Corporation
in paying for all or a portion of the costs of the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project and
the costs of issuing the Bonds.

Section 2. Such appropriation shall be in addition to all appropriations provided for
in the existing budget and levy, and shall continue in effect until the completion of each of the
2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project.  Any surplus of such proceeds shall be credited to
the proper fund as provided by law.

Section 3. A certified copy of this resolution, together with such other proceedings
and actions as may be necessary, shall be filed by the fiscal officer of the School Corporation,
who shall report the appropriation to the State of Indiana Department of Local Government
Finance.

Section 4. Any officer of the School Corporation is hereby authorized and directed to
take any and all actions as such officer deems necessary or desirable to effect this resolution, and
any and all actions previously taken by any officer of the School Corporation, including, but not
limited to, publication of the notice of the public hearing held in connection with this
appropriation, be, and hereby are, ratified and approved.



3

This Resolution hereby is ADOPTED by the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart
Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, this 12th day of September, 2017.

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS,
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA

AYE NAY

ATTEST:

Secretary of the Board of School Trustees

DMS JJQ 10698055v1



APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES
OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA

WHEREAS, the Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana (the “School
Corporation”), exists and operates under the provisions of Indiana Code 20-26, as amended from
time to time (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the School Corporation, as lessee, anticipates entering into a lease or an
amendment to an existing lease (the “Lease”), with the Elkhart Community School Building
Corporation (the “Building Corporation”), as lessor, in order to procure funds for the Building
Corporation to purchase from the School Corporation of certain real property and the
improvements located, or to be located thereon, operated by the School Corporation or the
extension of the ownership by the Building Corporation of certain real property and the
improvements located, or to be located, thereon operated by the School Corporation
(collectively, the “Premises”), which proceeds the School Corporation will use to pay for the
costs of the renovation, remodeling, expansion and equipment upgrade of the existing J.C. Rice
Educational Services Center, other miscellaneous facility and/or equipping projects at facilities
operated by the School Corporation and any projects related to any of such facility improvement,
renovation and equipping projects, all to be used in connection with the operation of the School
Corporation (collectively, the “2018 Educational Services Center Renovation Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Building Corporation anticipates issuing one or more series of first
mortgage bonds secured by the payments under the Lease (the “Bonds”), the proceeds of which
will be used to pay the School Corporation for the extension of the Building Corporation’s
ownership of the Premises and reimbursement for improvements to the Premises paid by the
School Corporation, and in turn used by the School Corporation to pay for all of the costs of the
2018 Educational Services Center Renovation Project and any other expenses incidental thereto,
including the costs of issuing the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the costs of the 2018 Educational Services Center Renovation Project
include, without limitation, all expenses necessarily incurred in connection with the proceedings,
together with a sum sufficient to pay the costs of supervision and inspection during the period of
the 2018 Educational Services Center Renovation Project, all expenses of every kind actually
incurred by the Building Corporation or the School Corporation preliminary to acquisition of
certain property by the Building Corporation and the 2018 Educational Services Center
Renovation Project, such as costs of necessary records, engineering expenses, publication of
notices, salaries and other expenses and the costs of land, rights-of-way and other property to be
acquired for the 2018 Educational Services Center Renovation Project; and

WHEREAS, the Board of School Trustees of the School Corporation (the “Board”) has
found that there are not sufficient funds available or provided for in the existing budget and tax
levy which may be applied to the costs of the portion of the 2018 Educational Services Center
Renovation Project and anticipates authorizing the Building Corporation to issue its Bonds in
one or more series; and

WHEREAS, all or a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds in an amount currently
estimated not to exceed $2,000,000 will be paid to the School Corporation by the Building



2

Corporation as the price for the purchase of the Premises or the extension of the Building
Corporation’s ownership of the Premises and the reimbursement for improvements to the
Premises paid by the School Corporation since the Premises have been owned by the Building
Corporation; and

WHEREAS, notice of a hearing on said appropriation has been duly given by publication
as required by law, and the hearing on said appropriation has been held, at which all taxpayers
had an opportunity to appear and express their views as to such appropriation; and

WHEREAS, the Board expects to pay for certain costs of the 2018 Educational Services
Center Renovation Project (collectively, the “Expenditures”) prior to the issuance of the Bonds
and to reimburse the Expenditures with the proceeds received by the School Corporation upon
the issuance of the Bonds by the Building Corporation; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to declare its intent to reimburse the Expenditures
pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 and Indiana Code § 5-1-14-6(c).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES
OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA, AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. There is hereby appropriated a sum not to exceed Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000) out of the proceeds of the Bonds received by the School Corporation from the
Building Corporation in connection with the purchase by the Building Corporation of the
Premises from the School Corporation or the extension of the Building Corporation’s ownership
of the Premises and the reimbursement for improvements to the Premises paid by the School
Corporation since the Premises have been owned by the Building Corporation, together with all
investment earnings thereon, for the use by the School Corporation in paying for all or a portion
of the costs of the 2018 Educational Services Center Renovation Project and the costs of issuing
the Bonds.

Section 2. Such appropriation shall be in addition to all appropriations provided for
in the existing budget and levy, and shall continue in effect until the completion of each of the
2018 Educational Services Center Renovation Project.  Any surplus of such proceeds shall be
credited to the proper fund as provided by law.

Section 3. A certified copy of this resolution, together with such other proceedings
and actions as may be necessary, shall be filed by the fiscal officer of the School Corporation,
who shall report the appropriation to the State of Indiana Department of Local Government
Finance.

Section 4. The Board hereby declares its official intent that, to the extent permitted
by law, to execute the Lease with the Building Corporation, to request the Building Corporation
to issue the Bonds in one or more series or issues, in an original aggregate principal amount not
to exceed $2,000,000, and to reimburse costs of the 2018 Educational Services Center
Renovation Project consisting of the Expenditures from proceeds of the sale of such the Bonds



3

Section 5. Any officer of the School Corporation is hereby authorized and directed to
take any and all actions as such officer deems necessary or desirable to effect this resolution, and
any and all actions previously taken by any officer of the School Corporation, including, but not
limited to, publication of the notice of the public hearing held in connection with this
appropriation, be, and hereby are, ratified and approved.

This Resolution hereby is ADOPTED by the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart
Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, this 12th day of September, 2017.

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS,
ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA

AYE NAY

ATTEST:

Secretary of the Board of School Trustees

DMS JJQ 10698064v1



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

September 7, 2017 

 

TO:  Dr. Robert Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

 

FROM:  Dr. Robert Woods 

 

SUBJECT: Textbook Rental Fees – 2017-2018 

 

 

Due to a misunderstanding, we thought a social studies textbook was a rental text only to discover the 

book is actually consumable.  The fees for grades Kindergarten through fifth grade need to be increased, 

the recommended fees are: 

 

   Recommended Fees 

Kindergarten Fee:       $77.00 

Grade 1    $149.00 

Grade 2    $139.00 

Grade 3    $164.00 

Grade 4    $145.00 

Grade 5    $130.00 





policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3210CS/page 1 of 2 

(as presented during the 8/22/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
 

STAFF ETHICS 
 
 
An effective educational program requires the services of men and women of 
integrity, high ideals, and human understanding.  It is the policy of the Elkhart 
Community Schools to carry out its mission in accordance with the highest ethical 
standards and to ensure that its employees conduct themselves in a manner that 
fosters public confidence in the integrity of the Elkhart Community Schools, its 
processes, and its accomplishment.  To maintain and promote these essentials, the 
Board expects all employees to maintain high standards in their working 
relationships. 
 
Employees in the performance of their duties will maintain the highest ethical 
standards including but not limited to the following examples: 
 
 A. recognize basic dignities of all individuals with whom they interact 

in the performance of duties; 
   
 B. represent accurately their qualifications; 
   
 C. exercise due care to protect the mental and physical safety of 

students, colleagues, and subordinates; 
   
 D. seek and apply the knowledge and skills appropriate to assigned 

responsibilities; 
   
 E. keep in confidence all student related information unless such 

information needs to be shared in the discharge of their certified 
responsibilities; 

   
 F. ensure that their actions or those of another on their behalf are not 

made with specific intent of advancing private economic interests; 
   
 G. avoid accepting anything of value offered by another for the purpose 

of influencing judgment; 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3210CS/page 2 of 2 

(as presented during the 8/22/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
   
 H. refrain from using their position or public property, or permitting 

another person to use an employee's position or public property for 
partisan political or sectarian religious purposes; 

   
  This will in no way limit constitutionally or legally protected rights 

as a citizen. 
   
 I. maintain appropriate student relationships and adhere to 

Corporation expectations related to certified boundaries with 
students as expressed in AG 3362 policy 3214.04ACS. 

 
 
September 12, 2017 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PROFESSIONAL STAFF 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed New 3220.01/page 1 of 2 

(as presented during the 8/22/17 BST meeting) 
 
 

TEACHER APPRECIATION GRANTS 
 
 
 
The Board of School Trustees adopts this policy for the purpose of determining the 
distribution of teacher appreciation grants.  This policy shall be submitted to the 
Indiana Department of Education (IDOE) along with the School Corporation’s staff 
performance evaluation plan online as one (1) document by September 15th of each 
year. 
 
Definitions: 
 
For purposes of this policy, the following definitions apply: 
 
The term “teacher” means a professional person whose position with the Corporation 
requires a license (as defined in I.C. 20-28-1-7) and whose primary responsibility is 
the instruction of students. 
 
The term "license" refers to a document issued by the IDOE that grants permission 
to serve as a particular kind of teacher.  The term includes any certificate or permit 
issued by the IDOE. 
 
Distribution of Annual Teacher Appreciation Grants: 
 
Teacher appreciation grant funds received by the Corporation shall be distributed to 
licensed teachers who meet the following criteria: 
 

A. employed in the classroom (including providing instruction in a 
virtual classroom setting); 

 
B. rated as Effective or Highly Effective on their most recent 

performance evaluation; and 
 

C. employed by the Corporation as of December 1st of the year in 
which the teacher appreciation grant funds are received by the 
Corporation. 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PROFESSIONAL STAFF 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed New 3220.01/page 2 of 2 

(as presented during the 8/22/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
 
The Corporation shall distribute the teacher appreciation grant funds it receives as 
follows: 
  

A. A cash stipend as determined by the Superintendent shall be 
distributed to all teachers in the Corporation who are rated as 
Effective; and 

 
B. A cash stipend in an amount that is ___________% more than the 

stipend given the teachers rated as Effective shall be distributed to 
all teachers in the Corporation who are rated as Highly Effective. 

 
A stipend to an individual teacher in a particular year is not subject to collective 
bargaining but is discussable and is in addition to the minimum salary or increases 
in the salary set under I.C. 20-28-9-5. 
 
The Corporation shall distribute all stipends from a teacher appreciation grant to 
individual teachers within twenty (20) business days of the date the IDOE 
distributes the teacher appreciation grant funds to the Corporation. 
 
This policy shall be reviewed annually by the Board and shall be submitted to the 
IDOE annually by the Superintendent as indicated above. 
 
 
 
I.C. 20-18-2-22 
I.C. 20-28-1-7 
I.C. 20-43-10-3.5 
 
 
 
© NEOLA 2017 
 
September 12, 2017 

25 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5111/page 1 of 5 

(as presented during the 8/22/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
 

DETERMINATION OF LEGAL SETTLEMENT 
 
 
The Board establishes the following policy for determining student eligibility to 
attend the schools of this Corporation. 
 
 A. The Board will educate, tuition free, students who have legal 

settlement in the Corporation, and students enrolled according to 
the requirements of I.C. 20-26-11. 

  
 B. Where the legal settlement of a student cannot reasonably be 

determined by reference to the residence of the student’s parent or 
legal guardian and the student is being supported by and living with 
a person whose residence is within the Corporation, the student 
may be enrolled without payment of tuition.  If the parents are able 
to support the student and have placed the student in the home of 
another person primarily for the purpose of attending school in this 
Corporation without establishing legal guardianship as required by 
Indiana law, tuition may bewill not be charged unless otherwise 
required by law. 

  
 C. Tuition shall be charged to those students who are approved for a 

transfer and whose legal settlement is outside the State of Indiana, 
unless the student’s parent(s) is a full-time employee of Elkhart 
Community Schools.  Transfer tuition fee, payable at the Business 
Office, is due in advance of the student's enrollment unless an 
approved transfer has been issued by another school district. 

   
 D. A child who is placed in foster care by a court of competent 

jurisdiction shall be admitted tuition free, without regard to 
residency, to a school within the Corporation, as selected by the 
State Department of Human Services or the child placing agency 
responsible for placement of that child. 

   
 E. Foreign students participating in a foreign-exchange program 

approved by the Indiana State Board of Education and living with a 
resident host family will be admitted tuition free. 

  



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5111/page 2 of 5 

(as presented during the 8/22/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
 
 F. The Corporation will provide a free education to those students who 

are considered by Federal law to be illegal aliens, if the student's 
parent or legal guardian has legal settlement within the Corporation, 
or considered to be homeless by criteria established by the State 
(see Policy 5111.01 and AG 5111.01 - Homeless Students). 

  
 G. Students who have completed the eleventh grade and have changed 

legal settlement to another school corporation may complete the 
twelfth grade in this Corporation. 

  
 H. A married student living with a spouse or a married or unmarried 

emancipated minor is eligible to attend school without payment of 
tuition if the student resides in the Corporation. 

  
 I. Children of Divorced Parents 
  
 Children of divorced parents may attend school in this Corporation 

without the payment of tuition if one (1) parent resides in this 
Corporation and a timely election is made utilizing the "Custodial 
Statement and Agreement: Divorce, Separation, or Abandonment" 
form provided by the Indiana State Board of Education.   

 
 The parent with physical custody of the student or the student, if 

the student is at least eighteen (18) years of age, must notify the 
Superintendent of the school corporation in which the 
parents/student seek to have the student enrolled of their election 
to enroll in the Corporation.  The election shall be made on a yearly 
basis and applies throughout the school year unless the student’s 
parent no longer resides within the attendance area of the 
Corporation. 

 
 J. A student who has been expelled from another school corporation or 

who is expelled from a nonpublic school or withdraws from a public 
or a nonpublic school to avoid expulsion and seeking enrollment in 
the Elkhart Community Schools must meet with the Director of 
Student Services/designeeAssistant Superintendent of Student 
Services.  Such student may be enrolled in the Corporation in 
compliance with I.C. 20-33-8-20 during the actual or proposed 
expulsion provided: 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5111/page 3 of 5 

(as presented during the 8/22/17 BST meeting) 
  
 1. the student's parent informs the Corporation of the student's 

expulsion or withdrawal to avoid expulsion; 
  
 2. the Corporation consents to the student's enrollment; 
  
 3. the student agrees to the terms and conditions of enrollment 

established by the Corporation; 
   
 4. the student accepts the placement proposed by the Director 

of Student Services Assistant Superintendent of Student 
Services. 

  
 Such students may be charged will not be charged tuition if they do 

not have legal settlement in the Corporation, unless otherwise 
required by law. 

  
 If a student's parent fails to inform the Corporation of the expulsion 

or withdrawal to avoid expulsion or the student fails to follow the 
terms and conditions established for enrollment, the Corporation 
may withdraw consent and prohibit the student's enrollment during 
the period of the actual or proposed expulsion.  Before consent is 
withdrawn, the student must be given an opportunity for an 
informal meeting with the Director of Student ServicesAssistant 
Superintendent of Student Services.  At the informal meeting, the 
student is entitled to: 

  
 1. a written or verbal statement of the reasons for the 

withdrawal of consent; 
  
 2. a summary of the evidence against him/her; 
  
 3. an opportunity to explain his/her conduct. 
  
 K. Students, with a residence in Indiana, whose parents do not have 

legal settlement within the Corporation but present evidence that 
they will move into the Corporation within a short period of time 
may enroll in the schools of this Corporation without payment of 
tuition for the time not in residence. 

  
 L. Nonresident students may be accepted into the Summer School 

Program provided by this Corporation but may be required to pay a 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5111/page 4 of 5 

(as presented during the 8/22/17 BST meeting) 
different tuition. 

 
Transfer Students 
 
In addition to students with legal settlement in the Corporation, students without 
legal settlement in the Corporation (hereafter referred to as “transfer students”) will 
be enrolled in compliance with I.C. 20-26-11-32 and the following procedure: 
 
 A. Annually, the Board will establish the number of transfer students 

that can be accepted in each grade level. 
   
 B. The Board will establish a date by which requests to enroll a 

transfer student must be submitted to the Superintendent.  This 
date shall be submitted to the Indiana Department of Education and 
published on the Corporation Internet website. 

   
 C. Requests to enroll a student without legal settlement in the 

Corporation shall not be denied if the student to be transferred: 
   
 1. has been enrolled in the Corporation in the prior school year; 
   
 2. is a member of a household in which any other member of the 

household is a student in the transferee school; or 
   
 3. has a parent who is an employee of the Corporation. 
   
 D. If the number of requests to enroll in each grade level exceeds the 

number established by the Board reduced by the number of 
transfers that may not be denied as described in paragraph (C) 
above, the students to be enrolled in each grade level shall be 
determined by random selection in which each application 
submitted on or before the date established by the Board pursuant 
to paragraph (A) above has an equal chance of being selected. 

 
Pursuant to State law, a student’s application to transfer to the Corporation may be 
denied if the student has been suspended for ten (10) or more school days, or 
suspended or expelled for possession of a firearm, deadly weapon, or a destructive 
device, causing physical injury to a person, or a violation of the Corporation’s drug 
or alcohol rules during the twelve (12) months preceding the student’s request to 
transfer.  
 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5111/page 5 of 5 

(as presented during the 8/22/17 BST meeting) 
For purposes of computing the number of days of suspension of the student 
requesting enrollment, student discipline received from a teacher pursuant to 
I.C. 20-33-8-25(b)(7) and I.C. 20-26-11-32(j) shall be included in the calculation of 
the number of school days that a student has been suspended. 
 
No transfer student shall be accepted for enrollment for athletic reasons. 
 
 
I.C. 20-18-2-11 (legal settlement defined) 
I.C. 20-33-2-12 (transfer to another accredited or non-accredited school) 
I.C. 20-33-8-17 (expulsion for lack of legal settlement) 
I.C. 20-26-11-1 (residence defined) 
I.C. 20-26-11-2.5 (divorced parent election) 
I.C. 20-26-11-6(e) (option to not charge transfer tuition) 
I.C. 20-26-11-32 (lottery selection of student transfer requests, HEA 1381 – 2013) 
Plyer v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982) (State Statute denying free public education to 
illegal immigrants violated the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth 
Amendment) 
Divorced Parents Agreement:  
http://www.doe.in.gov/sites/default/files/legal/formiii.pdf 
Third Party Agreement:  
http://www.doe.in.gov/sites/default/files/legal/custodialstatementinstructions.pdf 
 
 
 
© NEOLA 2013 
 
September 12, 2017 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3121ACS/page 1 of 5 
 
 
 

PERSONAL BACKGROUND CHECKS AND MANDATORY  
REPORTING OF CONVICTIONS AND ARRESTS 

 
 
Persons Subject to This Policy 
 
This policy applies to all individuals who: 
 
 A. apply for employment with: 
   
 1. the Elkhart Community Schools; or 
   
 2. an entity with which the School Corporation contracts for 

services; or 
   
 B. have entered into a contract to provide services to the School 

Corporation; or 
  
 C. are employed by an entity which has entered into a contract to 

provide services to the School Corporation, 
 
if the individuals are likely to have direct, ongoing contact with children within the 
scope of the individuals' employment. 
 
Requirements of Applicants 
 
At the time an individual makes application for employment with the Elkhart 
Community Schools, or enters into a contract to provide services to the School 
Corporation, s/he shall be required to: 
 
 A. give written consent for the Personnel Human Resources 

Department to obtain an expanded national criminal history 
information search (as defined by I.C. 20-26-2-1.5); and 

   
 B. complete and sign a written criminal history questionnaire. 
 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3121ACS/page 2 of 5 
 
 
 
Elkhart Community Schools will conduct an expanded criminal history check which 
meets requirement I.C. 20-26-2-1.5 concerning all applicants for non-certificated 
employment or certificated employment not later than one (1) month after the 
applicant's employment by Elkhart Community Schools.  All applicants are 
responsible for the entire cost associated with obtaining their expanded criminal 
history. 
 
The failure to answer honestly questions contained in the criminal history 
questionnaire shall be grounds for immediate termination of the individual's 
employment. 
 
A verification of the applicant's eligibility to work using the E-verify database 
maintained by the Federal government as required by I.C. 12-32-1 shall be 
conducted on each applicant who is offered a job. 
 
The Superintendent shall establish the necessary procedures for obtaining personal 
background information on each applicant recommended for employment as a 
certified staff member which shall include the following: 
 
 A. an expanded national criminal history check (as defined by 

I.C. 20-26-2-1.5) of the criminal history record system maintained 
by the Federal Bureau of Investigation based on fingerprint 
identification or another method of positive identification 

  
 B. a search of the national sex offender registry maintained by the 

United States Department of Justice 
  
 C. verification of the applicant’s eligibility to work using the E-Verify 

database maintained by the Federal government as required by 
I.C. 12-32-1 

  
 D. an Indiana Bureau of Motor Vehicles driver history if the position 

involves driving 
   
 E. search of U.S. District Court Records from the districts where 

applicants resided 
 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3121ACS/page 3 of 5 
 
 
 
Each applicant shall certify under penalty of perjury his/her eligibility to be 
employed by the Board as a United States citizen or a qualified alien.  The Board 
may deny employment to an applicant who is convicted of an offense for which the 
applicant’s license for the position may be revoked or suspended by State law. 
 
The procedures shall provide that information and records obtained from 
pre-employment inquiries under this policy are confidential and shall not be 
released except as necessary to implement this policy or defend a decision made 
pursuant to this policy. 
 
 
Criminal Convictions Which Constitute Grounds Not to Employ or Contract an 
Individual 
 
If an applicant for employment or an individual contracting to provide services to the 
School Corporation has been convicted of any of the following listed offenses, s/he 
shall not be employed by the Elkhart Community Schools.  Further, no entity which 
contracts to provide services to Elkhart Community Schools shall employ any 
individual in a position likely to have direct, ongoing contact with children or staff 
within the scope of the individual's employment if the individual has been convicted 
on any of the following listed offenses: 
 
 A. Murder (I.C. 35-42-1-1); 
   
 B. Causing suicide (I.C. 35-42-1-2); 
   
 C. Assisting suicide (I.C. 35-42-1-2.5); 
   
 D. Voluntary manslaughter (I.C. 35-42-1-3); 
   
 E. Reckless homicide (I.C. 35-42-1-5); 
   
 F. Battery (I.C. 35-42-2-1) unless ten (10) years have elapsed from the 

date the individual was discharged from probation, imprisonment, 
or parole, whichever is later; 

   



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3121ACS/page 4 of 5 
 
 
 
 G. Aggravated battery (I.C. 35-42-2-1.5); 
   
 H. Kidnapping (I.C. 35-42-3-2); 
   
 I. Criminal confinement (I.C. 35-42-3-3); 
   
 J. A sex offense under I.C. 35-42-4; 
   
 K. Carjacking (I.C. 35-42-5-2); 
   
 L. Arson (I.C. 35-43-1-1) unless ten (10) years have elapsed from the 

date the individual was discharged from probation, imprisonment, 
or parole, whichever is later; 

   
 M. Incest (I.C. 35-46-1-3); 
   
 N. Neglect of a dependent as a Class B felony (I.C. 35-46-1-4(b)(2)) 

unless ten (10) years have elapsed from the date the individual was 
discharged from probation, imprisonment, or parole, whichever is 
later; 

   
 O. Child selling (I.C. 35-46-1-4(b)); 
   
 P. Contributing to the delinquency of a minor (I.C. 35-46-1-8) unless 

ten (10) years have lapsed from the date the individual was 
discharged from probation, imprisonment, or parole, whichever is 
later; 

   
 Q. An offense involving a weapon under I.C. 35-47 or I.C. 35-47.5 

unless ten (10) years have elapsed from the date the individual was 
discharged from probation, imprisonment, or parole, whichever is 
later; 

   
 R. An offense relating to controlled substances under I.C. 35-48-4 

which is classified as a felony under State law unless ten (10) years 
have elapsed from the date the individual was discharged from 
probation, imprisonment or parole, whichever is later; 

   



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3121ACS/page 5 of 5 
 
 
 
 S. An offense relating to material or performance which is harmful to 

minors or obscene under I.C. 35-49-3 unless ten (10) years have 
elapsed from the date the individual was discharged from probation, 
imprisonment, or parole, whichever is later; 

   
 T. An offense relating to operating a motor vehicle while intoxicated 

under I.C. 9-30-5 which is classified as a felony under State law 
unless five (5) years have elapsed from the date the individual was 
discharged from probation, imprisonment, or parole, whichever is 
later; or 

   
 U. An offense that is equivalent to any of the offenses listed in this 

subsection in which the judgment of conviction was entered under 
the law of any other jurisdiction. 

 
Candidates for positions who have been convicted of misdemeanor offenses under 
I.C. 9-30-5 or 35-48-4, and disclosed those convictions the same, may have this 
provision waived following submission to an addictions assessment. 
 
Duty to Report Criminal Convictions During Employment 
 
During the course of his/her employment with the School Corporation, each 
employee shall be required to report his/her arrest or the filing of criminal charges 
against the employee, and conviction of criminal charges to the Superintendent 
within two (2) business days of the occurrence.  The Superintendent shall obtain a 
review of each reported conviction and shall recommend appropriate action to the 
Board considering the risk to members of the school community presented by the 
continued employment of the convicted employee. 
 
The Superintendent shall prepare administrative guidelines to implement this policy. 
 
 
 
I.C. 10-13-3, 20-26-2-1.5 
I.C. 20-26-5-10, 20-26-5-11, 20-28-5-8 
 
 
 
© NEOLA 2012 
September 12, 2017 























































 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  September 12, 2017 

 

Personnel Recommendations *** REVISED 9/12/17*** 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Consent Agreement – We recommend the approval of four consent agreements regarding unpaid 

time.   

 

 

b. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2017-18 school year:  

 

Austin Conner    Memorial/Science 

 

Elizabeth Fawcett   Pinewood/Grade 6 

 

Jessica Leatherman   Daly/Art 

 

Sara Nelson    Riverview/ENL (temporary contract) 

 

Carrie Shank    Pinewood/Music 

 

Cristina Wiltse    Beardsley/Grade 4 

 

 

c. Maternity Leave – We recommend a maternity leave for the following employees:  

 

Kaylie Dvorak    Beardsley/Grade 1 

Begin: 9/29/17    End: 10/13/17 

 

Kaleigh Estrup    Riverview/Grade 1 

Begin: 10/9/17    End: 6/6/18 

 

Holly O’Connell   Pinewood/Grade 2 

Begin: 9/28/17    End: 11/9/17 

 

d. Parental Leave – We recommend a parental leave for the following employee:  

 

Randi Weidman   Woodland/Special Education  

Begin: 8/28/17    End: 6/6/18 



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

e. Rescind Maternity Leave – We recommend rescinding a maternity leave for the following 

employee:  

 

Jessica Schibley   Central/Science 

 

f. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Melissa Butner    Beck/Music 

Began: 9/19/16    Resign: 5/26/17 

 

Anne Ledebur    Beardsley/Grade 4 

Began: 8/15/17    Resign: 8/17/17 

 

Kathleen Malas   Pierre Moran/Special Education   

Began: 8/15/17    Resign: 8/18/17 

 

Diego Mendoza   Pierre Moran/Intervention 

Began: 8/16/10    Resign: 9/7/17 

 

 

 

CLASSIFIED 

 

 

a. Resignation – We report the resignation for the following classified employees: 

Kathy Aistrop    Hawthorne/Food Service 

Began: 1/27/16    Resign: 9/29/17 

 

Tori Bubac    Feeser/Food Service 

Began: 2/10/17    Resign: 8/16/17 

 

Bobbie Denney    Monger/Food Service 

Began: 8/04/15    Resign: 9/04/17 

 

Matthew Hensley   Tech Services/Tech Network Engineer 

Began: 2/25/04    Resign: 9/29/17  

 

Connie Jones    Beardsley/Food Service 

Began:  8/22/16    Resign: 9/15/17 

 

Diana Liptak    Daly/Misc. Title I/III Parent Support 

Began: 8/22/06    Resign: 6/1/2016 

    

 

b. Termination – We report the termination for the following classified employees:    

Marissa Meyer    Riverview/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/29/16    End: 8/21/17 

       Board Policy 3120.01s 

 



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

  Obra Vavrek    Riverview/Custodian    

Began: 5/31/16    End: 9/06/17 

       Board Policy 3120.01s 

 

c. New Hires – We recommend regular employment for the following classified employees: 

 

Barbara Anguiano   WVPE/Sr. Reporter & Assign. Editor 

Began: 6/05/17    PE: 8/31/17 

 

Elizabeth Gilvin   Memorial/Food Service 

Began: 4/26/17    PE: 9/05/17 

 

Edward Goins    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began:  4/13/17    PE: 8/24/17 

 

Rosemary Wilson   Roosevelt/Custodian 

Began: 7/10/17    PE: 9/05/17 

    


	Agenda
	Minutes - Work Session August 22 2017
	Minutes - Regular Meeting August 22 2017
	Gift Acceptance - EACC
	Gift Acceptance - ECS
	Gift Acceptance - Food Service
	Gift Acceptance - Osolo
	Gift Acceptance - Osolo.pdf
	Gift Acceptance - Osolo 2

	Gift Acceptance - MHS
	Gift Acceptance - Riverview
	Gift Acceptance - Riverview.pdf
	Gift Acceptance Fairchild

	Execution Copy of First Amendment to Lease
	Resolution Approving Additional Appropriation Regarding 2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project
	Resolution Approving Additional Appropriation Regarding 2018 Educational Services Center Renovation Project
	Textbook Rental Fee Memo
	Fundraisers
	Board Policy 3210CS 2nd
	STAFF ETHICS

	Board Policy 3220.01 2nd
	TEACHER APPRECIATION GRANTS

	Board Policy 5111 2nd
	DETERMINATION OF LEGAL SETTLEMENT

	Board Policy 3121ACS - 1st
	PERSONAL BACKGROUND CHECKS AND MANDATORY
	REPORTING OF CONVICTIONS AND ARRESTS

	ETHOS Contract
	Conflict of Interest Disclosure
	Grant Submissions
	Overnight Trip Requests
	Conference Leave Requests
	Conference Leave Requests - Perkins
	Personnel Report - REVISED

